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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sandhar Engineering Private Limited (the “Company") which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in india, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
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internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materiat if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the ﬁnancjal statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

-
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2B (f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 and that the back-up of one accounting software which form part of the ‘books of
account and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode’ has not been kept on the servers
physically located in India on a daily basis during 1 April 2023 till 5 May 2023.

¢ The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f The qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 2B (f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

g With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

¢ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 37 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 37 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
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person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in uther persuns vl enliliey identified in any manngr whatsosver by or on behall of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below,
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares:

(a) In the absence of reporting on compliance with the audit trail requirements in the independent
auditor’s report of service organisation, we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature of
accounting software [operated by third-party service provider] was enabled and operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software used for
maintaining general ledger at the database level.

(b) The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the application level for
the accounting software used for maintaining general ledger for part of the year as such trail was
enabled in a phased manner from 18 July 2023 to 21 July 2023.

(c) The Company has used accounting software for maintaining payroll records which is operated
by a third-party service provider and based on the independent auditor's report of service
ordanisation, we are unable to comment whether the audit trail facility has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the said software.

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated, we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its director during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

el
'\\‘:)' LS<X »

Shashank Agarwal

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 095019
Date: 07 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24095109BKFROK5990
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Sandhar Engineering Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

® (b)

©

©

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular pragramme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in a peroid of two years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment
were verified during the year ended 31 March 2024. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically

(i)

W)

U

(Vi)

(b)

verified by the management during the year.For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end,
written confirmations have been obtained and for goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of
receipts has been linked with inventory records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification
is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No
discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets.
As informed to us, there is no requirement on the company to submit quarterly returns or
statement with such banks.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year
ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Sandhar Engineering Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Act in respect of its manufactured goods and are of the opinion that prima facie,
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. [However, we have not
carried out a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether these are
accurate or complete.

(vi) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year ended 31 March 2024 since effective 1 July 2017, these
statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute.

(viil) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year ended 31 March 2024.

(@) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defauited in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

© In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

® The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not
applicable.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Sandhar Engineering Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year ended 31 March
2024. Accordingly, clausc 3(x)(b) of the Ordcr is not applicable,

(<) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

© As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiit) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188
of the Act where applicable and details regarding such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. Being a wholly owned
subsidiary company of a public limited company , the requirements of Section 177 of the Act of
having an Audit Committee are not appplicable.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

() In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

© The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

(i) The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 393 lacs in the current financial year and Rs 1,120
- lacs in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year ended 31 March 2024,
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Sandhar Engineering Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued) -

its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

() The requirements as stipulated by the pravisions of Section 135 are not applicahle ta the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are notapplicable.

ForBSR& Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-1000

2. Y1,

A

Shashank Agarwal

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 095019
Date: 07 May 2024 ICAIUDIN:24095109BKFROK5990
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Sandhar Engineering Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the Internal flnancial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatary
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Sandhar
Engineering Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Sandhar Engineering Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to flnanclal statements Include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
pravide reasonable assurance regarding prevention o limely detection of unauthurised acguisilion, uss,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBS R & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-10002

g t |
R el

Shashank Agarwal

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 095019
Date; 07 May 2024 ICAIUDIN:24095109BKFROKS5990
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Sandhir Engincering Private Limited
Balance Sheet ae at 31 March 2024

(Rupces in lncs, cxcept sharc data, per share date and unless otherwise stated)

Asal As at

i = 3 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Assets
Non-cutrent assets
Property. plant and equipment A 11,489.66 5,089.45
Cupital work-in-progress k)] 127.28 3,09%.65
Inlongible assets under development 3B(ii) - 1,874.00
Other intongible asseta o 3,000.31 1.799.93
Right-of-use ursets 3D 1,174.6Y 1,037.29
Finuncinl assets

- Other financiul atsets 4D 206.52 2N
Doferred tax asset (net) 13B 862,73 35231
Incotne-tax ossets 58 27.65 250
Other non-current assets 5A LR 14128017
Total non—current assets | 7.029.95 14,611,13
Current assety
Inventorics 6 1,525.09 640.50
Financial agsets

- Trade receivables 4A 534.60 1,117.23

- Cugl und cash equivalenis 4B 132754 DCRLY

» Otley bank bulances AC 5.01 5.m

- Other financhal asvix 4D 4N -
Otlier current ussets 5C,D,E 1,33H.24 I,561 18
Total current assets £,7358.29 342377
Tomd agvety 1276524 14,034,99
Equity and tiabilities
Equity
Equity share capltal 7 R.5().00 6.450.00
Other equily R (H.IRT.49) | L7280y
Total cquity 5202.48. 4,772.20 .
Liabilities
Nom-current linbliitles
Finoncial liabilities

- Borrowings 9A B,682.61 724168

~ Lease liubilities 11 518.39 796.00
Provisions 13A 304 2054
Totul non current Hubilitics 9..135.!-! H.DM.I_I
Current Habilitles
Financiul liobilities

- Borrowing uB 2.958.16 2 7R0.04

- Trude puyables [}

e total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises .52 708.30
@ totul outstanding dues of creditors other thun micro enterprises sud small enterprines 3,670.54 1.009.57

-Lease labilities 1 277.62 207.45

- Other financial liabilitics 11 573.94 335.09
Othor current liabllitles 12 39341 nmM
Provisions 13A = _3do 523
Tatal current Habltities ' 3,217.69 SI0AN_
Totul equity and Habilities 22,765.24 1#034.90
Mnteriat accounting policies 2

The seeomponying notes are an integral part of these financinl stutements.

As per our report of even date mtached

For BSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Acconntanis
| Fign Regislration nuniher AW W-10022

Sashank Agn
Partier
Membership No. 095109
Plaee; Gurugram

Date; 07 Muy 2024

For and un behalf of (he Board of Direetors of
Sendher Engincering Private Limited

cppr

Upendra Bhardwa)
Chief Financial Officer
[Maee: Gurugram

Dute: 07 Moy 2024

DIN: 02587229
Pluce: Gurugrom
Dute: 07 Muy 2024

VI,

S

{

{Iu Chanrasin
Compuny Secretiry
1081 M No. ATI249
Ploce: Gurugraim
Date: b7 May 2024

Alny Komar Rbghay
Addditional Director
BN (9350408

d: Gurugrom
V |;} )7 May 2024



Sandhar Engineering Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Rupees In Ines, except share datn, per share data and vnless otherwise stated)

Particulars

REVENUE

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total [ncome (1)

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortigation expense

Other expenses

Total expenacs (1)

Loss before tax (II1)

Tax expense

Current tax

Detferred tax

Total tax cxpense (IV)

Loss for the year (V=10 -1V)
Other comprehenslve income (VI)

Kems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans

Income tax rolating 1o re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans

Total other comprehensive loss for the year (net of tax)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (VI = V-VI)
Earnings per equity share:

(1) Basic-Par value of Rs. 10 per share

(2) Diluted-Par value of Rs. 10 per share

Materiel accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

~Al Firm Registration number
. - 'a‘ \ -
: S »

Shashunk Agarwal
Pariner

Membership No. 095109
Place: Gurugram

Date: 07 May 2024

ARW/W-100022

Note

14
15

24

22

23

Fer the ycar ended For the vesr ended
31 Minrch 2024 31 March 2023
23,087.42 4,651.25
1283 20.10
23,100.25 4,671.35
17.139.49 3,527.25
(8.98) (48.06)
3,184.65 985.23
1,043.33 658,64
1.672.23 743.05
2,134.01 668.25
25,164.73 — 683436
(2,064.48) (1,863.01)
(500.86) (351.71)
(500.86) (351,71)
(1,563.62) (1,511.30)
(55.73) (3.49)
9.56 0.60
(46.17) (2.89)
(1.609.79) (1,514.19)
(2.03) (3.14)
(2.03) (3.14)

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors of
Sandhar Engineering Private Limited

ety

Upendra Bhardwa]
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Gurugram

Date: 07 May 2024

N Tans

Whale Time Director
DIN: 02587229
Place: Gurugram
Date: 07 May 2024

hishek Chaurayia

Company Secretary
ICSI M No. A71249
Place: Gurugram
Date: 07 May 2024

Ajay Kumal Raghay
Additional Dircctor
DIN 09380468

Place: Gurugram
Date: 07 May 2024



Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupecs in lncs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

A, Equity share capital

Equity shares
Particulars Note
No. of shares An:onnt i
ace
Balunce as at 01 April 2022 7 3,50,00,000 3,500.00
Changes during the year 2,95,00000 2,950.00
Balance ag at 31 March 2023 H,45,00,000 6,450.00
Changes during the year 2.,05,00,000 2,050,00
Balance as at 31 March 2024 8,50,00,000 _5;500.00
B. Other equity
Reserves and Surplus
Particluars | Total
Retained earnings
Balance as at 01 April 2022 (163.61) (163.61)
Loss for the year (1,511.30) (1,511.30)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) ] (2.89) (2.49)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 (l..677.80j I (1,677.80)
| Loss for the year (1,563.62) (1.563.62)
{Other consprehensive income (net of tax) (46.17) (46.17)
| Balance as at 31 March 2024 (3,287.59) | (3,287.59)|
Note:
L. Refer note 8 for nature and purpose of other equity
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statenents.
As per our report of even date attached
For BSR& Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants
M)Fi Regiztration number : |

Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
WW-100022

C e M

Shashank Agarw tUpendra Bhardwaj

Partner : Chicf Financial Officer f‘umpun)‘ Sccrctary
Membership No. 095109 Place: Gurugram ICSI M No. A71249
Place: Gurugram Date: 07 May 2024 Place: Gurugram
Date: 07 May 2024 Date: 07 May 2024

Alay Kumariaghay
Whole Time Divector Additional Director
DIN: 02587229 DIN 09380468

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 07 May 2024 Date: 07 May 2024




Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 NMarch 2023

A Cash flows from opernting nctivities
1 Loss before tax

2 Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense
(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest expense

Interest income on secutity deposits measured at amortised cost

Interest income

3 Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes (1+2)

4 Movements in working capital
(Increase) in inventories
Decrease/(inctease) in Trade receivables
Dectease/(increase) in financial assets
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets
Increase in trade payables
Inciease in provisions
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase 1 other current ltabilities
Total movement in working capital

5 Cash generated from/(used in) operations (3+4)

6 Income tax paid (net of refund)

7 Net cash gencrated from/(used in) operating activities (5-6)

B Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and other intangible assels

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Bank deposits made

Interest received

Net cash (used in) investing activities

C Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-tetm borrowings
Proceeds fiom long-term borrowings
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net)
Proceeds trom issue of equity share capital
Payment of lease liabilities
Finance charges on lease liabilities
Finance cost paid
Net cash generated from financing activities

D Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

E - 1 Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of year
E - 2 Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents include

Balances with banks

= In current accounts

- [n cash credit accounts

Deposits with otiginal maturity of less than 3 months
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(2,064.48) (1,863.01)
167223 743.05
(0.02) 001
1,043.33 65816
(10.11) (1017
(1.25) (6.97)
639.70 (478.93)
(884 59) (609.12)
582 57 (1.117.23)
2163 (34 1)
22291 (770.47)
2,233 18 1,59379
50.10 370 95
24 12 (479 $9)
360.67 14 24
2,616.59 (1,032.04)
3,256,29 (1,510.97)
25.06 2.59
3.231.23 (1,513.56)
(3,369.02) (5,342 64)
272 5127
- 162 59
125 697
(3,365.05) (5.121.81)
(2,930 43) =
437135 181241
178 12 2780 04
2,050.00 2,950 00
(267.44) (231.90)
(71 56) (91 00)
(968 53) (561.64)
236151 6,657.91
2,227.69 22.54
99 85 7731
2,327.54 99.85
z 0.02
126.41 99 83
220113 - .
2,327.54 99,85




Sandbar Engineering Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless atherwlse stated)

For the year ended For the yeor ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023

Reconclllation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for linbilitics arising from financing activitics

Particulurs | For the yeur ended Ml‘lrtll| ¥or the year ended March|
! 31, 20244 31,2023%

|Opening balance us at the beginaing of the year I 10,021.72 5429.27 |
{Cash Hows during the year (net) | 1.6149.04 | AS02.45
| Closing balance ns nl the end of the year 11,640.77 | 10,021.72 |

*Includes current maturities of non-current borrowings and interest acerned thereon, refer Note 9A and 9B,

Notes:
1. The above Statement of Cagh Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) *Statement of Cash Flows'.

2. Refer note 2 for material nceounting policies.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ay per our repait of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Bourd of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sandhar Englneering Private Limited
WIW-100022

Shashank Agarwal Upendra Bhardwa|

Partner Chief Financiel Officer Compuny Secrelary

Membership No. 095109 Place: Gurugram ICSI M No. A71249

Place: Gurugram Date: 07 May 2024 Place: Gurugram

Date: 07 May 2024 Datg; U7 May 2024
Niru)Aun Ajuy Kumy
Whole Time Director Additionnl Direerar
DIN: 02587229 DIN 09380468

Place: Gurugrum
Date: 7 May 2024

Place: Gurugram
Date: 07 May 2024




Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

1.

21

Corporate information

Sandhar Engineering Private Limited (‘the Company’) [CIN - U35999HR2021PTC098487] is a Private Limited Company
domiciled in India. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sandhar Technologies Limited. The Company was
incorporated on 14 October 2021 under the provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013, with its registered officc located at
Plot No.13, Sector-44, Gurugram, Haryana 122002, The Company is engaged in the business ol manufacturers, assembling
of various muffler, frames swing arm and other automobiles products.

Material accounting policies

Basis of preparation

. Statement of compliance

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 07 May 2024.
Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All
amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest Lacs, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following items which have been
measured at fair value or revalued amount:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities Fair value

Net defined benefit plan (assct)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of
g " defined benefit obligation.

Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

In preparation of the financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates, and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation
uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

o Estimation of obligations relating to employee benefits: key actuarial assumptions — Note 26

e  Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets- Note 2.2 (a)
e Leases — Note 2.2 (¢)

» Estimated impairment of non-financial assets — Note 2.2 (d) —

» Estimated impairment of financial assets — Note 2.2 (1)

& Co



Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

¢e. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The management
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as hroker
quotes or pricing services, is used W measure fair values, then Lthe management assesses the cvidence obtained from the
third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair
value hietarchy in which (he vatuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques
as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.c.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the
inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the
fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which
the change has occurred.

[ Current/ Non-current classification
Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash

equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months ‘as its operating cycle for determining current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet. -




Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

2.2

Summary of material accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)

@

(i)

(i)

Recognition and Measurement

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment arc mcasured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price, import duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes, duties or levies, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any other directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the
items and restoring the site on which it is located. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of
an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
Refer to note 2.1(iv) regarding significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumplions.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labor,
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

A property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the Financial Statements on disposal or when no further benefit
is expected from its use and disposal. Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are generally stated at the
lower of their net book value and net realizable value. Any gain or losses arising on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, property, plant and equipment are no longer depreciated. Gains or losses arising
from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset
is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost, net of their

estimated residual values, over the estimated useful lives and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
Identified components are depreciated over their useful life, the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the




Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the I'inancial Statements for the Ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

()

(i)

principal asset. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation which coincides with the rates indicated in Schedule I
of the Act for the assets listed below -

Asset category Useful lives estimated by the management
- (years)

Plant and Machinery 10-15 years

Office Liquipments - 3-5 years —

Vehicles 8 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years ]

The management has estimated, supported by independent assessment by technical experts, professionals, the useful lives
of the following classes of assets:

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted, if appropriate.
Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given
above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset is ready for
use (disposed off).

Intangible assets
Recognition and Measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an item of intangible asset
comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at
the purchase price. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amottisation
and accumulated impairment Josses.

An intangible asset is derecogniscd on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and disposal.
Tosses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

(iii) Amortisation

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation




Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

expense on intangible assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life fram indefinite to finite
is made prospective basis.

Software

Software purchased by the Company are amortized on a straight line basis in five years. Software further includes non-
standard (customized) software and standard (non-customized) software.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the assets is
derecognised.

Amortization method, useful lives and residual lives are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted, if
appropriate.

c. Leases
Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The
Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date, an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis from the commencement date over the
shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Il ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the assets.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer note 2.2(d) for Impairment of non- financial assets.
ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

2. 5C
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Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per sharc data and unless otherwisc stated)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option (o purchase the underlying asset. Lease liabilities and
Right-of-use assets have been presented as a separate line in the balance sheet. Lease payments have been classitied as
cash used in financing activities.

iii) Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease unless such payments arc structurcd to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase. Lease incentive received are recognised as an integral part
of the total lease expense over the term of the lease.

Payments made under finance lease are allocated between the outstanding liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

d. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an assets may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an assets is required, the Company estimates the assets recoverable
amount.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating
units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an individual assets or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the assets is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation muitiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining useful life.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately
for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculation
generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project
future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate
for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in
which the assets is used.

or 0 L))



Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses, if any, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses of continuing operations,
including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and T.oss, except for properties previously
revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the
amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

In regard to assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior period, the Compaty teviews at each teporting
date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer cxists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been 4 chiange in the estinates used o determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. 1t such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the assct in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case,
the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

e. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at functional currency spot rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or the statement of
Profit and Loss are also recognised in OCT or the statement of profit and loss, respectively).

f. Revenue from contracts with customer

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognises revenue
when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer.

Sale of products

Revenue from sale of products is recognised when control of the products being sold is transferred to customers and there
are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The performance obligations in contract with customers are fulfilled at the time
of dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer acceptance depending on delivery terms. Revenue towards satisfaction ot a
performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of discount) allocated to that performance
obligation. Revenue excludes taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.
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For contracts that permit the customer to return an item, revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that
a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. Therefore, the amount of revenue
recognised is adjusted for expected returns, which are estimated based on the historical data. In these circumstances, a
refund liability and a right to recover returned goods asset are recognized.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are
classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right (o receive cash, and
only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned or deferred revenue is tecognised when tiere are billings in excess of revenues.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for cha'nges in contract specification and requirements. The Company
reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the transaction price could be
allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the
event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

g. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax
amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCIT or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available.

Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has
sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available
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against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at
each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the'tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been cnacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and they relate to income taxcs levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity,
or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

h. Segment reporting
Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other
components, and for which discrete financial information is available. The Company is primarily engaged in the business
of designing and manufacture of electronic parts and accessories for automobiles segment. All operating segments’
operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance. CODM believes that these are governed by
same set of risk and returns hence CODM reviews as one balance sheet component. Further since there is no turnover
therefore, disclosure relating to geographical segment is also not applicable.

i Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic carnings / (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to the shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equily shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue, if any, that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares except where the results will be anti-dilutive.

J Provisions (Other than employee benefits)
General provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed the expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
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of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance
cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

k. Employee benefits
(i). Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. Short-term employee benefit
obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay the
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii). Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified
monthly contributions to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner towards provident fund and employee state insurance
scheme (‘ESI’). Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees. If the
conttibution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid,
the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability afier deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as
an assel (o the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

(iii). Defined benefit plans

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan
provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of
employment of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon
completion of five years of service.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method, which recognizes each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure
each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future

A
™ [
CD -U I .‘



Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based
on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the
terms of related obligations.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the ellect ol Lhe assel ceiling, excluding amounts included in
nel interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (cxcluding amounts included in net intercst on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or assel. The Company recognizes
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

iv. Other long term employee benefits

Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future service
periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due
wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not
expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term
employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured based on independent actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method.

As per the compensated absence encashment policy, the Company does not have an unconditional tight to defer the
compensated absence of employees, accordingly the entire compensated absence obligation as determined by an
independent actuary has been classified as current liability as at the period/ year end.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL’), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.
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(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:

- Amortised cost;

- Fair Value through Qther Comprehensive Tncome (‘FVOQCT’) — debt instrument;
- FVOCI - equity investment; or

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes
its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

-the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss.
This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. Company has recognized financial assets viz. security
deposit, trade receivables, employee advances at amortized cost.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

-the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and )

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each.reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes
interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is re-classified from the equity to
Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using
the EIR method.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity investment). This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL.
This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classificd as at FVPL. For all other cquity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Statement of Profit
and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether
management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising

cash flows through the sale of the assets;
- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and
how those risks are managed;

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations
about future sales activity.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purpose of this assessment ‘Principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the
assessment, the Company considers:

- contingents events that would change the amounts or timings of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non - recourse features)

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount
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substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include
reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a
significant discount or premium to its contractual amount, as feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that
substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include
reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the
prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at These assels are subsequently measured al fair valuc. Net gains and losscs,
FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss. |
Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the cffective
amortised cost interest method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in

prolit or loss. g

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL
ifitis classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or
loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognized in profit or loss.

(iii) Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The
Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms
are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with
modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when,
the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
- Financial assets measured at amortized cost; and
- Financial assets measured at FVOCI — debt instruments.

At cach reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt instruments at
FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit — impaired includes the following observable data:

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk cxposurc, the Company determines that whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.
For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to the Statement of the Profit and Loss and is recognised in
OCI.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjcct to the write- off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with Company’s
procedures for the recovery of amount due.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for the measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., deposits and advances

b. Trade receivables that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

c. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there
has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is
used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase
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in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime LCL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from detfault events that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating
the-cash flows, an entity is required to considet:

o All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or othcr credit cnhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance,
i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount.

e Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.c. as a
liability.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases
in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.c., financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

m, Inventories

Inventories which includes raw materials, stores and spares and finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. However, raw materials, components and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not
written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above
cost or in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed
their net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

e Raw materials and components: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost of raw material, components, stores and spares is determined on first in, first
out basis.

o Finished goods: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based
on the normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.




Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

0.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realizable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference
to the selling prices of related finished products.

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an itcm-by-item basis.
Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis.

Recognitlon of dividend Income, interest Income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment is established.
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset
(when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have
become credit impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest
income reverts to the gross basis.

Standard issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2024, MCA has not notified
any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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Sandhar Engineering Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

Nute 3B(l): Capital work in propress

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Capital work in progress

Breakup of capital work in progress is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress aging schedule

As at 31 March 2024

127.25

3,098.65

127.25

3,098.65

127.25

3,098.65

127.28

3,098.65

Particulars

Amount for a period of

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Projects in progress

127.25

127.25

Total

127.25

127.25

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars

Amount for a period of

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
vears

Total

Projects in progress

1.204.92

1,893.73

3,098.65

Total

1,204.92

1.893.73

3.098.65

Note 3B(ii): Intangible assets under development

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Intangible assets under development

As at 31 March 2024

Intangible assets under development aging schedule

1,874.00

1,874.00

Particulars

Amount for a period of

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3

vears

Total

Projects in progress

Total

Intangible assets under development aging schedule

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars

Amount for a period of

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Projects in progress

1,874.00

1.874.00

Total

1,874.00

1,874.00
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Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

3D. Right-of-use asset

] Leasehold land
Particulars and Building Total
Gross carrying value
Balance as at 01 April 2022 1,392.28 1,392.28
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,392:28 1,392.28
Additions 454.65 454.65
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1,846.93 1,846.93
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 01 April 2022 57.72 57.72
Depreciation for the year 297.27 297.27
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 354.99 354.99
Depreciation for the year 317.25 317.25
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 672.24 672.24
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2024 1,174.69 1,174.69
As at 31 March 2023 1,037.29 1,037.29




Sandhar Englneering Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial assets

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

A, Trade receivables
(unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Trade receivables 534 66 1.11723
Total trade receivables 534.66 1.117.23
Trade reccivables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2024
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Particulars g a
nrcy Less than 6 [ 6 months 12 years 2.3 years More than Total
munihs 1 yem ' J years
i) Undisputed Trade 1eceivables- considered good 530 66 4,00 & - - 534.66
i1} Undisputed Tiade receivables- credit impaired - - - - - -
iii) Disputed Trade 1eceivables- considered good - - - - - -
iv) Disputed Trade receivables- which have significant increase in - -
credit risk — ) F
v) Disputed Trade receivables- credit impaired - - - . - -
Trade receivables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2023
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Particulars - g
Less than 6 | 6 months 1-2 year O More than Total
months 1 year 3 years
i) Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 1.056.73 60.50 - - - 1.117.23
ii) Undisputed Trade receivables- credit impaired - - - - - -
iii) Disputed Trade receivables- considered good - - - - - -
iv) Disputed Trade receivables- which have significant increase in 3 3
credit risk - - 2
v) Disputed Trade receivables- credit impaired - - - - - -
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

B.  Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

—In current accounts - 002

— In cash credit accounts 126 41 99 83

Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 2,201.13 .

Tu(al cash and cash eyuivalents 2,327.54 99.85
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

C.  Other bank balances
Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months*

Total other bank balances

*These depsoits are held as maigin money with the banks for availing working capital facilities,




Sandhar Engincering Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

D.  Other financial assets
Non-current
Security deposits 20612 228 34
Earnest money and retention money depusil given N 40 0.40
Totol 206,52 228,74
Current
Security deposits 471 £
Total 4.71 =
Total (A+B+C+D) 3,078.44 1,450.83
5. Other assets
; g As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current
A.  Capital advances
(Unsecured and considered good, nnless otherwise stated)
Unsecured, considered good, 141.14 1,128 17
Total 141.14 1,128.17
B.  Income-tax asset
(Unsecnred and considered good, nnless otherwise stated)
Advance income-tax 27.65 259
27.65 2.59
Total (A+B) 168.79 1,130.76
Current
C. Other advances
Unsecuied, considered good, 703.00 1509
Total 703.00 15.09
D. Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses 25.14 3461
Total 25.14 34.61
E. Balance with statutory / government authorities
(Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Unsecured, considered good 610 14 1.511 48
Total 610.14 1.511.48
Total (C+D+E) 1,338.28 1.561.18
6. Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realizable valuce)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Raw materials 1,132 28 450 67
Work in progress 499 322
Finished goods 52.05 44 84
Stotes and spares 335.77 14177
Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 1,525.09 640.50
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Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

7.

Equity share capital

Particul As at As at
articulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Authorised share capital

9,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 9.500.00 0, 500,00

9,500.00 B 6,500.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid equity share capital

Particulars No. of shares Amount in

Rs. Lacs

Balance as at the beginning of the year 6,45,00,000 6.450.00

Equity shaies issued dusing the year 2,05,00,000 2.050 00

Balance as at 31 March 2024 8,50,00,000 8,500.00

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regards to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The equity shares are
entitled to tecerve dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to ils share of the paid up equity
capital of the company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in 1espect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the shareholders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company. after distribution of all preferential amounts The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the share holders

The Company has nol issued any bonus shates, any shates fur consideration other than cash and have not bought back

Reconciliation of the equity share ding at beginning and at end of the year
Particul As at As at
e R 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Numberof Rs. in Lacs Noher of Rs. in Lacs
shares shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year 6.45.00,000 6,450.00 3,50,00,000 3,500.00
Equity shares issued during the year 2.08,00,000 050,00 2,05, 0000 245000
Balance as at 31 March 2024 8,50,00,000 8,500.00  6.45,00,000 6.450.00
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Particulars No. of shares* % of shareholding
Sandhar Technologies Limited 8.49,99,999 100%
* Number of Shares are given in absolute numbers
Details of shares held by promoters as at 31 March 2024
Nobf _\.'!mfvs o Change during Nogof shiresat  of Total % change
Promoter Name the beginning of the end of the N
the year shares during the year
the vear year
Sandhar Technologies Limited 6,44,99,999 2,05,00,000 8,49,99,999 100% 100%
Shri Jayant Davar, nominee of Sandhar Technologies Limited 1 - | 0% 0%

Equity shares of 210 each fully paid

Tatal 6.45.00.000 2.05.00.000 8.50,00,000 100% 100%%
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Sandhar Fngineering Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

Details of shares held by promoters as at 31 March 2023

No. of shares at Change durin No. of sharesat | of Total N
Promoter Name the beginning of lhi B E  the end of the shares a , oy change
the year y year during the year
Sandhar Technologies Limited 3.49,99,999 2,95,00,000 6,44,99.999 100% 100%
Shii Jayant Davar, nominee of Sandhar Technologies Limited 1 - 1 0% 0%
Equity shares of Z10 each fully paid
Total 3.50,00,000 2,95,00.000 G A5,00.000 100" 100%
8. Other equity
Particulars a Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (1,677.80) (163.61)
Loss for the year (1,563.62) (1,511 30)
Other comprehensive income = Re-measurement of defined benefit liabilities (46.17) (2.89)
Balance at the end of the year (3,287.59) (1,677.80)
Total other equity (3,287.59) (1,677.80)
Nature and purpose of other equity
1. Retained earnings
Retained eamings comprises of accumulated balance of losses of current and prior years
2. Remeasurements of defined benefit obligations
Remeaswements of defined benefit obligation comprises actuatial gains
9. Borrowings
Particulars As at As at
Pk 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A. Non-current
Term loans
Indian rupee loan from banks (secured) (refer note (a) and (b) below) 5,057.61 7.241 68
Loan from related parties (refer note (iii) below) 3,625 00 -
Total 8,682.61 7,241.68
Agpregate secured loans 5,057 61 7.241.68
Aggregate unsecured loans (refer note (iii) below) 3,625.00 -
B. Current
a) Current maturities of long termi loans
Indian rupee loan from banks (secured) 2,958.16 2,780.04
Total 2,958.16 2,780.04
Aggrepate secuted loans 295816 2.780 04
Aggregate unsecured loans - -




Sandhar Engineering Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Rupecs in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Terms of borrowings

(a) Term Loan from Federal Bank (refer note (i) below)

(b) Term Loan fiom Kotak Mahindia Bank (refer note (ii) below)

Term loan from banks referred to above to the evtent of :

As at
31 March 2024

5,141 29
2,874 48

As at
31 March 2023

6.901 56
3.120 16

i) Rs. 5141.29 lacs were secured by way of first pari-passu chaige over entire cutrent assets, present and futwre, ol the borrower Second pari-passu chatge on entite (ixed Assels, present
and future, of the borrower. The interst rate with in the range of 8 25% - 10.25% p.a. The loan is repayable over a period of 60 months (including 12 montls moratorium) and thereafter

equal quarterly principal repayments.

11) Rs. 2874,48 lacs were secured by way of first pari-passu chatge on finimovable properties, belng 1and and building siiuated & Mysore unit, n case of hyputhetication, first parl passu to
be shared with all banks on all existing and future moveable fixed assets of the borrower, Second pari passu to be shared with all banks on all existing and future moveable current assets
of the bortower. 1 he interst rate with in the range of //0% - Y U8% p a. ‘Lhe loan is repayable over a petiod of 16 quattetly Instalments (moratorium period of 12 months from the date of

first disbursement of the term loan facility)

iii) The Company has taken an unsecured loan from Sandhar Technologies Limited (Holding Company) of Rs. 36.25 lacs at an interest rate of 9% p.a. The said loan is repayable within
the loan period of two years trom the date of disbutsement of the loan amount

Trade pnyubles

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 35) 34052 768 36
Total outstanding dues of creditots other than micro entetprises and small enterprises 3,670.58 1,009 57
Total trade payables 4,011.10 1,777.93
Trade Payables ageing schedule a8 on 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particul
articulars Less than | 1-2years Wt 1 More than 3 Total
vear vears
(1) MSME 340.52 - - - 340,52
(i) Others 3.670.06 052 " - 3,670 58
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - = & = 5
(iv) Disputed dues — Others - - - - ~
Trade Payables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particular:
articulars Less than 1 1-2 years e More than 3 Total
vear years
(i) MSME 768,36 - - - 768 36
(it) Others 1,008 80 0.77 - - 1.009 57
(iii} Disputed dues — MSME - 5 = = =
(iv) Disputed dues — Othels s . - - -
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities
For explanation on the Company's credit risk management processes, refer to note 34
Other financial liabilities
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Non-current

Lease liabilities
Total

Current

Payables for capital goods

Security deposit payable

Provision for interest - MSMED (refer note 35)
Lease liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Total

51839 796 00
518.39 796.00
539.06 32757
4,00 2.00
2211 -
277.62
877
B51.56




Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

12.  Other liabilities

. As ot Ay 8t
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
Statutory dues 393.39 32.74
Advance from customer 002 -
Total 393.41 32.74

13A. Provisions

As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Provision for employee benefits

Non-current
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 26) 82.47 13.61
Provision for compensated absences 5167 1293
Total 134.14 26.54
Current
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 26) 1.59 009
Provision for compensated absences 1.87 5.14
Total 3.46 §23
13B. Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Particulars As at e

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Tax effect of items resulting in deductible temporary differences
Provision for employee benefits 23.61 545
Unabsorbed depreciation and business losses 93358 478 39
Others . 9.56 0.60
Total deferred tax assets 966.75 484,44
Tax effect of items resulting in taxable temporary differcnces i
Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 104,02 132,13
Total deferred tax liabilities 104,02 132,13
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 862,73 352.31
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Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the ycar ended 31 March 2024

(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

14. Revenue {rom operations

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Sale of products 22,770 89 4.622.54
Sale of services 16617 =
Other operating revenue

Scrap sale 150 36 28.71
Revenue from operations 23,087.42 4,651.25

15. Other income

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
3t March 2023

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.02 -
Interest from bank 1.25 6.97
Interest from others 0.74 -
Interest income on security deposits measured at amortised cost 10.11 10.17
Other miscellaneous income 0.71 2.96
12.83 20.10

16. Cost of materials consumed

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Inventory at the beginning of the year 450.67 18.91
Add: Purchases during the year 17,821.10 3,959.01

18,271.77 3.977.92
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 1,132.28 450.67
Cost of materials consumed 17,139.49 3,527.25

17. Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Closing inventories

Finished goods 52.05 44.84

Work in progress 499 322
Opening inventories

Finished goods 44.84 -

Work in progress 3.22 -
Net changes (8.98) (48.06)

18. Employee benefits expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ¢cnded
31 March 2023

Salaries, wages and bonus 2,996 13 903 34
Contribution to provident and other funds 49 37 31.67
Staff welfare expenses 124.96 4145
Giratuity expense (refer note 26) 14.19 8.77

3,184.65 985.23
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Sandhar Engincering Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

19. Finance costs

Particulars

For (he year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Interest to banks on

- Term loan
Interest to others*
Bank charges
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 30)
Commission on corporate gurantee-Term loan
Total finance costs

* Amount paid to related party (1efer note 28)

20. Depreciation and amortisation expense

829.88 567.16
5092 -
0.76 048
71.56 91.00
90.21 -
1,0:43.33 658,04

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation on right of use assets
Amortisation on intangible assets

Less: Depreciation capitalized during the year

21. Other expenses

672.05 311,85
317.25 29727
682.93 22961
1,672.23 838.73
- 95.68
1,672.23 743.05

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Consumption of stores and spares
Packing material
Job work charges
Rent
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Freight and forwarding charges
Power and fuel
Repairs and maintenance

- Buildings

- Plant and machinery

- Others
Legal and professional charges
Travelling and conveyance
Payment to auditor*
Security service charges
Testing and development expenses
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss (net)
Miscellaneous expenses
Total other expenses

* Payment to auditors

362.36 132.38
2090 17.80
124.75 9.43
15.52 3.65
49 48 13.31
13,50 471
25545 34.38
825.99 258.78
911 0.97
134.85 49.05
38.41 16.13
69.25 31.66
5425 37.10
15.50 2.10
86.09 26.59
0.50 347
0.12 1.32
57.98 2542
2,134.01 668.25

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

As auditor
- Audit fees
In other capacity
- Reimbursement of expenses
Total

15.00 2.00
0.50 _——___0.10
15.50 7B PV, N2:00
Q- Y\
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Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

22. Components of other comprehensive income

‘I'he disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

During the year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars Retained earnings

Total
s, e

Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans (55.73) (55.73)
Tax impact on re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans 9.56 9.56
(46.17) (46.17)

During the year ended 31 March 2023
Particulars Retained earnings Total
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans (3.49) (349
Tax impact on re-measurement loss on defincd benefit plans 0.60 0.60
(2.89) (2.89)

23. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic and Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of equity

shares outstanding during the period.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company (1,563.62)
Number of equity shares (Number of shares in Lacs) 85000
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing Earning per 770.29

Share (Basic and Diluted) (Number of shares in Lacs)
Earning Per Share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs.) (2.03)

Face value per share (Rs.) 10

Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of Basic and Diluted earnings per share:

(1.511.30)

645.00

480.77

3.14)

10

Particulars Number of equity shares

Weighted average
number of shares

Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 per share:

Balance as at 1 April 2023 645.00
Issued during the year (Number of shares in lacs) 205,00
Balance as at 31 March 2024 850.00

As on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the Company does not have any dilutive potential equity shares,
25 %o
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645.00
125.29
770.29
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24. Income tax

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

(a) The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March
2024 and 31 March 2023 :

Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Current income tax
Current tax

Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax related to items recognised in QC! during the year
Net loss on'remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Income tax charged to other comprehensive income

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Reconciliation between average effective tax rate and applicable tax rate for the
year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 :

Loss before tax
Statutory tax rate
Income tax expense at the statutory rate

Tax impact of deductible/ non-deductible expenses
- Others
Income tax expense after adjustiment of tax impact of non deductible items

(500.86) (351.71)
(500.86) (351.71)
9.56 0.60
9.56 0.60
(2.064.48) (1,863.01)
17.16% 17.16%
(354.27) (319.69)
(146.59) (32.02)
(500.86) (351.71)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees In lucs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

26. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

A. Defined benefit plan (Non funded)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
Every employee who has rendered at least five years of continuous service gets a gratuity on departure at the rate
of fifteen days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months. Gratuity
benefits are valued in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

The most recent actuarial valuation of present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out
as at 31 March 2024, The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and
past service cost, were measured using the Projected Uit Credit Method.

I. Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets

Particulars P U it
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Liability for gratuity 84.06 13.70
_ Plan asset for gratuity - -
Net defined benefit liability 84.06 13.70
II. Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
—_ 13.70 1.44

Balance at the beginning of the year
Current service cost 13.62 8.66
Interest cost 1.01 0.11

| Benefits paid . -
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses . -
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation recognized in other 55.73 3.49
comprehensive income

| Balance at the end of the year 84.06 13.70

II1. Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year

Actual return on plan asset

Contribution paid into the plan

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets recognized in other
comprehensive income

Closing fair value of plan asset
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IV. Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee benefits expense

For the year ended | For the year ended |
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
_Current service cost 13.62 8.66
Interest cost 1.01 0.11
Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 14.63 8.77
V. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI)

. For the year ended | For the year cnded
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial gain / (loss) on defined benefit obligation (55.73) (3.49)

Return on plan assets excluding interest income - -
Amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (55.73) (3.49)
VI. Bifurcation of actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit obligation
For the year ended | For the year ended "
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial gain/(loss) due to demographic assumption change - -
Actuarial gain/(loss) due to financial assumption change 7.42 0.84
Actuarial gain/(loss) due to experience adjustment 48.31 2.65
Amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income 55.73 3.49

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and compensated absences are as follows:

(a) Economic assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market
yields available on government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilities. Salary
increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis.
Valuation assumptions are as follows which have been selected by the Company.

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
| Discount rate 7.23% | 7.38%
Inflation rate 7.00% 6.00%
Expected rate of return on assets NIL NIL

(b) Demographic assumptions

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of mlhuon,, ~.emuln Y,
promotion and othgrselavant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

%.8 Co
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The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date,
applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

Particulars A at LOEl

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Mortality table TIALM (2012 - 14) IALM (2012 - 14)
Retirement age 58 58
Attrition rate S|
Up to 30 years 10% 10%
From 31 (0 44 years 3% 3%
Above 44 years 1% 1%

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the year and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a
change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) (3.86) 4.16 (0.62) 0.67
Expected rate of future salary increase (0.5% 3.90 (3.63) 0.67 (0.63)
movement)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before
retirement and life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Gratuity expense expected to be incurred in the next year is Rs. 25.76 Lacs (Previous Year: Rs. 9.89 Lacs).

Expected maturity analysis

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023
Less than 1 year 1.59 0.08
1-2 years 1.46 0.06
2-5 years 33.13 4.03
More than 5 years 47.88 9.52

Other long-term employee benefits

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has incurred an expense on compensated absences amounting
to Rs. 48.04 Lacs (Previous Year: Rs.13.69 Lacs). The Company determines the expense for compensated
absences basis the actuarial valuation of present value of the obligation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
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27. Capital commitments (to the extent not provided for) and contingent liabilities

Capital commitments

‘ Particulars

31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 |

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to he executed on 148.45 2130.04

capital account (net of advances) and not provided for

Contingent Liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts Nil Nil

28. Related party disclosure

Holding Company

Sandhar Technologies Limited

Fellow Subsidiary Companies

Sandhar Tooling Private Limited

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Niraj Hans (Whole time Director) (Appointed w.e.f.
01.10.2023)

Mr. Yatendra Singh Chauhan (Whole time Director till
06.10.2023)

Mr. Ajay Kumar Raghav (Additional Director)
(Appointed w.e.f. 23.04.2024)

Mr. Gurvinder Jeet Singh (Additional Director)
(Appointed w.e.f. 23.04.2024)

Mr. Narender Kumar Dogra (Director till 23.04.2024)

Mr. Upendra Bhardwaj (Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Komal Malik (Company Secretary till 08.12.2023)
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The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for

the relevant financial year.

Nature of transaction Name of related party Relationship For the For the
year yYear ended
ended 31 March
31 March 2023
2024
Allotment of equity share | Sandhar Technologies Limited Holding Company 2050.00 2950.00 |
capital I
Loan received | Sandhar Technologies Limited Holding Company 3625.00 | -
Interest on loan paid Sandhar Technologies Limited Holding Company 28.76 =
Purchase of property, Sandhar Technologies Limited Holding Company 29.46 476.99
plant and equipment ,
Purchasc of raw materials | Sandhar Technologies Limited ITolding Company 1673.54 842.41
Reimbursement of Sandhar Technologies Limited | Holding Company 220.47 302.78
expenses
Sale of property, plant Sandhar Technologies Limited Holding Company 3.20 60.50
and equipment _
Sale of goods Sandhar Technologies Limited Holding Company 16.51 0.10
Purchase of property, Sandhar Tooling Private Limited | Fellow Subsidiary - 9.95
plant and equipment’s Company
Reimbursement of Mr. Yatendra Singh Chauhan Whole Time Director 11.15 10.20
expenses |
Reimbursement of Mr. Niraj Hans Whole Time Director 4.88 -
expenses
Remuneration paid Mr. Yatendra Singh Chauhan Whole Time Director 54.45 93.35
Remuneration paid Mr. Niraj Hans Whole Time Director 59.43 .
Remuneration paid Mr. Upendra Bhardwaj CFO 11.86 10.06
Nature of Balances Name of related party Relationship | Balance as at | Balance as at
outstanding 31 March 31 March
2024 2023
Trade payables Sandhar Technologies Limited Holding 188.62 94.50
Company
Trade payables Sandhar Tooling Private Limited | Subsidiary of - 10.58
Holding
Company
@2 Co
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29, Financial instruments- Fair values

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Particulars As at As at As at As at
 Buoll oS - 31 Murch 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2023
Financial assets
A. | Amortised cost _
Security deposit 210.82 210.82 | 228.34 | 228.34
Financial Liabilitics
‘B. | Amortised cost |
Lease Liabilities 796.01 796.01 1,063.45 1,063.45

The management assessed that the fair values of short term financial assets and liabilities significantly
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Accordingly,
management has not disclosed fair values for financial instruments such as, trade payables, cash and cash
equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets, other financial liabilities etc.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Trade receivables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as, specific country risk factors,
individual creditworthiness of the customer. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the
expected credit losses of receivables.

Discount rates used in determining fair value

The interest rates used to discount estimated future cash flows, where applicable, are based on the discount rate
that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period.

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and
most relevant data available. In addition, the Company internally reviews valuation, including independent price
validation for certain instruments.

30. Leases

(i) The Company has lease contracts for factory building used in its operations. Generally, the Company is restricted

from assigning and subleasing the leased assets. The Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ recognition
exemptions for these leases.
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(ii) Impact of Ind AS 116 on the statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars For the year For the year
ended March ended March
2024 2023
Interest on lease liabilities 71.56 91.00
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 20) o 317.25 _ 201.59 '
Impact on the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year 388.81 292.59

(iii) Amount recognised in the statement of cash flows

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31 March | ended 31 March
2024 2023
Recognition of finance lease liabilities due Lo Ind AS 116 339.01 322.90

31. Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial statements
that are;

(a) recognised and measured at fair value and

(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are dlsclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the company has
classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised with in the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The company has an established control framework with respect to the measurements of fair values. This includes
a valuation team and has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements and reports
directly to the Chief Financial Officer. The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and
valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair
values, then the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion
that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AR, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the
valuations should be classified. Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company's audit committee.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

6 PYT AN
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A. Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2024

Particulars Total Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices | Significant | Significant

in active observable | unobservable
markets inputs __inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets measured at amortised cost for which B

fair values are disclosed (refer note 29)

Security deposit 210.82 - = 210.82

B. Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2023

Particulars Total Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices | Significant | Significant
in active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs
i ol (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets measured at amortised cost for which

fair values are disclosed (refer note 29) £

Seeurity deposit 228.34 - - 228.34

During the period ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3 fair value measurements.

32. Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and assembling of aulomotive components. The Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an
analysis of various performance indicators by industry classes. All operating segments’ operating results are
reviewed regularly by CODM to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their
performance. CODM believes that these are governed by same set of risk and returns hence CODM reviews as one
balance sheet component. Further, the economic environment in which the company operates is significantly similar
and not subject to materially different risk and rewards.

The operating segment of the Company is identified to be “Electronic parts and accessories” as the CODM reviews
business performance at an overall Company level as one segment. Further since there is no export turnover
therefore, disclosure relating to geographical segment is also not applicable.

Accordingly, as the company operates in a single business and geographical segment, the reporting requirements for
primary and secondary disclosures under Indian Accounting Standard - 108 operating Segments have not been
provided in the financial statements,

656Co
%)

\C
(X0 0 -U




Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

33. Capital management

The Board of Directors policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital
employed, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders.

The Company manages capital risk by maintaining sound/optimal capital structure through monitoring of financial
ratios, such as debt-to-equity ratio and net borrowings-to-equity ratio on a monthly basis and implements capital
structure improvement plan when necessary.

The Company uses debt ratio as a capital management index and calculates the ratio as Net debt divided by total
equity. :

The Company is having Rs. 11,640.77 lacs (previous year Rs. 10,021.72 lacs) borrowing as at 31 March 2024.

34. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of designing and manufacture of electronic parts and accessories
for automobiles segment. The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprises trade payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to support the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial
assets include cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments

- Market risk (see (b))
- Credit risk (see (c)); and
- Liquidity risk (see (d)).

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

A. Risk management framework

The Company’s activities make it susceptible to various risks. The Company has taken adequate measures to
address such concerns by developing adequate systems and practices. The Company’s overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of markets and seeks to manage the impact of these risks on the Company’s
financial performance.

The Company’s senior management oversee the management of these risks and advises on financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The board provides assurance to the
shareholders that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and
that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk
objectives. ,

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and Company’s activities. The Company, through
its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.
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The Company’s board of direclors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to
the risks faced by the Company.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management of risk ]

Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents | Credit ratings | Credit limits el

Liquidity Risk Trade payables Cash flow forecasting, Availability of credit
Sensitivity analysis facilities.

B. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash tflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
borrowings, short term deposits and derivative financial instruments.

1) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Company is not exposed to interest risk.
ii) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange
rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a
foreign currency).

Details of unhedged foreign currency exposures
During the current year and previous year there is no unhedged foreign currency exposure.
C. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Corporate finance department in
accordance with the Company’s policy.

D. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing
facilities, by continug 1onitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the 111attlr1[y_gtwflleq of
financial assets an i ) '
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The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments:
Particulars Contractual cash flows =
Carrying value as 0- 1 year 1- S year More than
at 31 March 2024 S year
| Trade payables 4,011.10 4,011.10 |
Other financial liabilities 573.94 573.94 - e -
Lease Liabilities 796.01 277.62 - -
Borrowings )= 11,640.77 2,958.16 - -
| Total 17,021.82 7,820.82 - -
Particulars Contractual cash flows =
Carrying value as 0-1 year 1-5 More than
at 31 March 2023 year S year
Trade payables 1,777.92 1,777.92 - -
Other financial liabilities 335.09 335.09 - -
Lease Liabilities 1,063.45 267.45 - -
Borrowings 10,021.73 | 2,780.04 5 -
Total 13,198.19 5,160.50 - -

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

35. Disclosure in relation to Micro and Small enterprises 'Suppliers' as defined in the Micro, Small and

The dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 to the extent information available with the company is given below:

Particulars

As at
31 March
2024

As at
31 March
2023

(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the
year

340.52

768.36

(b) The interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any suppliér as at
the end of the year

22.11

(c)The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payments made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

- Interest paid

- Payment to Suppliers

(d) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.

(e) Amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

(f) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under the MSMED Act.
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Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

36. The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required
by the transfer pricing regulation under Sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires
existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company continuously
updates its documecntation for the international and domestic transactions entercd into with the associated
enterprises during the financial year. The management is of the opinion that its international and domestic
transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial
statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

37. Additional Information

a.

h.

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period.

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial
year.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
i. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company
shall;
i. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution or other lender.
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current
or previous financial year. t
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Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Rupees in Jacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

k. The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both during the
current or previous year.

I ‘The Company has not granted any loans to the promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013), cither severally or jointly with any other person which are repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayments as at 31 March 2024 (as at 31 March
2023: Nil).

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sandhar Engineering Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration number: 101248W/W-100022
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